AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE LEBANON SCHOOL DISTRICT ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANTS ASSOCIATION

AND

THE LEBANON SCHOOL BOARD

EFFECTIVE DATES
JULY 1, 2023 TO JUNE 30, 2027

Table Of Contents

PREAMBLE	2
ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE 2 - ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	2
ARTICLE 3 - MEMBER RIGHTS	2
ARTICLE 4 - NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE	3
ARTICLE 5 - JUST CAUSE	3
ARTICLE 6 - REDUCTION IN FORCE	3
ARTICLE 7 - LEAVE	4
ARTICLE 8 - TEMPORARY LEAVES OF ABSENCE	5
ARTICLE 9 - MATERNITY LEAVE	5
ARTICLE 10 - UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE	5
ARTICLE 11 - PAID HOLIDAYS	5
ARTICLE 12 - SICK LEAVE BUYOUT	6
ARTICLE 13 - OTHER BENEFITS	6
ARTICLE 14 - DISPENSING MEDICATION	6
ARTICLE 15 - JOB DESCRIPTIONS	6
ARTICLE 16 - EVALUATION	7
ARTICLE 17 - ADVERTISING TO FILL VACANT POSITIONS	7
ARTICLE 18 - INSURANCE BENEFITS	7
ARTICLE 19 - SICK BANK	8
ARTICLE 20 - VACATION POLICY	8
ARTICLE 21 - WAGE SCALE	9
ARTICLE 22 - LONGEVITY	9
ARTICLE 23 - RETIREMENT BONUS	9
ARTICLE 24 - TAX SHELTERED ANNUITY	10
ARTICLE 25 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	10
ARTICLE 26 - SAVINGS CLAUSE	11
ARTICLE 27 - ZIPPER CLAUSE	11
ARTICLE 28 - DURATION	112

PREAMBLE

To encourage the continuous ef	fective and harmoniou	s working relationship between the School Board
of the Lebanon School District,	SAU #88 (the "Board") and the Lebanon School District Administrative
Assistants Association (the "Ass	sociation"), the Board	and the Association make and enter into this
AGREEMENT on the	day of	2022 by and between the Board and the
Association. Pursuant to NH RS	A 273-A, the Board ha	s the authority to reach mutually satisfactory
agreement with the Association	as a representative of	the staff of the District included in the unit as set
forth in Article 1.	_	

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION

For the purpose of negotiating terms and conditions of employment as defined in NH RSA 273-A, the Association is hereby recognized as the exclusive bargaining representative for the following employees of the Lebanon School District: all office support personnel in the school buildings only. (This does not include the SAU staff.) It is agreed that said recognition is valid unless certification is lost under the provisions of NH RSA 273A. The Association agrees to represent equally all personnel covered by this Agreement without regard to membership in the Association. Further additions to the Association's eligible membership list, other than those stated above, will be defined and mutually agreed upon for inclusion during negotiations of the "Agreement". During the term of this Agreement, the Board agrees not to negotiate with any group other than the Association with regard to any matter subject to negotiations as long as the Association is recognized by the Public Employee Labor Relations Board. However, this shall not prevent the Board from communicating or consulting with any individual member of the bargaining unit or group of members of the bargaining unit for any purpose the Board shall deem desirable in the discharge of its responsibilities, nor shall it preclude any member of the bargaining unit from appearing before the Board on his/her own behalf on matters relating to his/her employment by the Board provided that it is not contravention of any Article in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 - ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

The Board agrees that the staff member shall have full freedom of association, self organization, and the designation of representatives of his/her own choosing to negotiate the terms and conditions of his/her employment and that he/she shall be free from interference, restraint or coercion by the Board or its agents in the designation of such representative or in self-organization or in other concerted activities for the purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual aid or protection.

The Association and its representatives may use school buildings prior to 7:45 A.M. and after 3:15 P.M. for Association business within the guidelines determined by the building Principal. Representatives of the Association and their affiliates shall be permitted to transact Association business on school property at all reasonable times provided that this shall not disrupt normal school operations.

The Association shall be given sufficient time on the agenda of any District-wide meeting of administrative assistants personnel to explain Association activities and to present announcements to members relevant to Association matters.

ARTICLE 3 - MEMBER RIGHTS

The Board recognizes the members full rights of citizenship and no religious or political activities of any member or lack thereof outside the school shall be grounds for any discipline or discrimination. It is expected that all rules and regulations governing employee activities and conduct shall be interpreted and applied uniformly throughout the District.

No member of the bargaining unit shall be required to appear before the Board or its agents for a formal hearing regarding continuation of that member of the bargaining unit in his office, position, employment, or the salary or any increments pertaining thereto unless he/she had been given, at least ten (10) working days in advance, a written notice of the reason for such meeting or interview and shall be entitled to have such legal representation as the individual desires to present, to advise and represent him/her.

The rights granted to members of the bargaining unit hereunder shall be deemed to be in addition to those provided elsewhere. This Agreement shall not be applied or interpreted so as to deprive employees of advantages heretofore enjoyed unless otherwise provided in the Agreement.

ARTICLE 4 - NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE

Negotiations procedure will be consistent with NH RSA 273-A. Any Agreement reached hereunder, which requires the expenditure of public funds for its implementation shall not be binding upon the Board, unless and until the cost items have been approved by the Legislative Body of the District in each year of its term. If the cost items are not approved by the Legislative Body, either party may reopen Negotiations on all or part of the entire agreement.

ARTICLE 5 - JUST CAUSE

The member's supervisor shall notify the member in writing as soon as evidence of any alleged delinquencies, indicate expected correction, and indicate a reasonable period of correction. Alleged breaches of discipline shall be reported to the offending member. The member shall at all times be entitled to have present counsel (legal, Association, and/or lay) when he/she is being reprimanded, warned, or disciplined for any infraction of rules or delinquency in performance.

No member shall be suspended, disciplined, reprimanded, reduced in rank or compensation or deprived of any advantage without just cause. All information forming the basis for disciplinary action will be made available to the member and his/her designee. Notice of non-renewal will be prior to June 1.

ARTICLE 6 - REDUCTION IN FORCE

The Lebanon School Board has the right to reduce the size of its workforce. When there are no special skills, training or working relationships involved, the Superintendent will conduct the layoff in reverse seniority order. If the Superintendent determines that such skills, training or working relationships are involved and their loss would be detrimental to the school or district, he/she may exclude certain personnel from layoffs occurring during the fiscal year.

Employees who wish to be eligible for recall must notify the Superintendent in writing within ten (10) days of the original layoff. For a period of fourteen (14) months following the layoff, qualified employees will be recalled to positions covered by this Agreement in the reverse order of their being laid off. Within fourteen (14) days of being notified of recall, employees must accept or reject the recall offer in writing. The effective date of recall will be set by the district.

ARTICLE 7 - LEAVE

Each member of the bargaining unit shall be entitled to leave in accordance with the following:

A. PERSONAL ILLNESS: For absences caused by illness or physical disability, each member shall be granted twelve (12) days of leave per year accumulative to ninety (90) days.

Sick days shall be used for the personal illness, injury or disability of the employee. Up to ten (10) days of sick leave per year may be used for the illness or disability of the employee's "immediate family", who requires the employee's care. Additional sick days may be approved for an immediate family member's illness, at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee. The term "immediate family" is defined in Article 7.D., Death in the Family.

Any secretary who has accumulated 110 days as of June 30, 2012, can maintain those accumulated days up to a maximum of 110 days and maintain as a maximum for subsequent years. If at any time during the period of this agreement, the number of accumulated days falls below 90, 90 days will become the new accumulated maximum.

Part-time employees shall be entitled to sick leave in proportion to the fraction of time worked. Members shall be given a written statement of accumulated sick leave with the first paycheck of the contract period.

- B. EXTENDED ILLNESS: In the event illness extends beyond accumulated sick leave, a member will receive benefits consistent with the district's long term disability plan. For those employees whose accumulated sick leave does not cover the waiting period under the district's long-term disability plan, the employee will first utilize the sick bank and then the district will make up the difference, if necessary, from the time the employees' sick days/sick bank expires and the long term disability waiting period ends.
- C. PERSONAL EMERGENCY LEAVE: Five (5) days leave for either personal or emergency purpose which requires absence during school hours. Notification to the member's Principal or other immediate supervisor for such leave shall be made at least two (2) days before taking such leave (except in the case of emergencies) and the member shall not be required to state the reason for taking such leave other than that he/she is taking it under this section. Said leave may not be taken to extend vacation and/or holiday periods unless an exception is granted by the Building Principal in their sole discretion for extraordinary or unique circumstances. Personal/Emergency leave is not accumulated from year to year.
- D. DEATH IN THE FAMILY: A member may have a total of up to five (5) days leave per incident for death in the immediate family. The term "immediate family" shall be construed to mean spouse, children, parents, grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law, brothers, sisters, or spouse's siblings or live-in partner of either gender. Bereavement leave other than stated may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools.
- E. PERSONAL INJURY: Absence due to injury incurred in the course of the member's employment shall not be charged against the member's accumulated sick days. The Board shall pay to such member the difference between his salary and benefits received under the Workmen's Compensation Act for up to fifty-six (56) calendar days. In the event of double payment, the employee will be required to reimburse the district.
- F. UNAPPROVED ABSENCE: For each day of unapproved absence, members of

the bargaining unit shall lose an entire day's pay.

ARTICLE 8 - TEMPORARY LEAVES OF ABSENCE

A member of the bargaining unit shall be entitled to the following non-accumulative annual leave:

A. A member called for jury duty or called to serve not more than a fourteen (14) days annual training tour of duty or temporary active duty with the National Guard or U.S. Reserves will be paid the difference between the fee he/she receives for such service and the amount of earnings lost by him/her by reason of such service, based on the member's regular daily rate.

ARTICLE 9 - MATERNITY LEAVE

Days used for this purpose shall be charged to personal illness. A temporary leave of absence, without pay, shall be granted before and/or after leave for personal illness at the request of the member.

The period of temporary physical disability resulting from pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions shall be treated as personal illness or disability leave under Article 7. The employee must provide a written statement from the health care provider certifying the period of temporary physical disability.

A written statement from the attending physician will be sent to the Superintendent indicating the date of anticipated return. There shall be no loss of previously earned benefits as a result of leave under this article.

ARTICLE 10 - UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE

A. CHILD REARING: A leave of absence of up to one (1) year shall be granted to any member for the purpose of child-rearing. All benefits earned prior to this unpaid leave will be retained by the individual upon return to employment.

B. GENERAL PROVISIONS:

- 1. The Superintendent may, at his/her discretion, extend any unpaid leave that has been granted to a member.
- 2. Other requests for leaves of absence for special reasons may be granted at the sole discretion of the Board upon the recommendation of the Superintendent.
- 3. Return from leave shall coincide with the beginning of the school year. Return during the school year shall be at the discretion of the Superintendent. A member returning shall be assigned to the same position or an equivalent position, if available.
- C. Members on unpaid leaves of absence shall continue to be considered members of the bargaining unit and shall be eligible for negotiated insurance benefits by paying the full cost of such benefits.

ARTICLE 11 - PAID HOLIDAYS

The following ten (10) days per year, non-accumulative, will be considered as paid holidays:

Labor Day Veterans' Day

Thanksgiving Day and the Day After Christmas Day, Day Before and Day After New Year' Day and Day Before Memorial Day

If an employee works on a holiday, the employee will either be given compensatory time off or paid straight time for hours actually worked. This compensation would be in addition to regular holiday pay.

ARTICLE 12 - SICK LEAVE BUYOUT

After ten (10) years of service within the District upon retirement, death or separation in good standing of the member, a payment equal to \$20.00 per day of accrued sick leave up to 90 days will be paid. New hires after June 30, 2010 are not eligible for this benefit.

ARTICLE 13 - OTHER BENEFITS

APPROVED TRAVEL: Approved travel on school business will be reimbursed at the district approved rate per mile upon submission of vouchers to the Superintendent of schools.

PRE-EMPLOYMENT PHYSICAL: Required pre-employment physical will be paid for by the District up to the rate of \$100.00.

OFF-HOUR SCHOOL BUSINESS: Any duties, assigned by the supervisor, that involve hours outside of the regularly scheduled day will be compensated for at the regular hourly rate unless compensatory time is agreed to by the administrative assistant and the supervisor.

PROFESSIONAL LEARNING: Lebanon School Board will reimburse individual members of the bargaining unit for expenses incurred for staff professional learning activities for which prior approval by the building Principal or designee has been received. A fund of \$5,200 shall be provided each year for course reimbursement and expenses for professional learning workshops. Individuals shall be limited to a \$400 reimbursement. If on May 1st, there are funds remaining, these remaining monies shall be equally distributed to individuals who were not fully reimbursed during the school year.

Reimbursement for courses and workshops will be approved in writing at the time of application and paid upon successful completion of the course or workshop.

ARTICLE 14 - DISPENSING MEDICATION

It is agreed that except in emergencies, members of the LSDAAA shall not be required to tend to the medical needs of or to dispense medication to students.

ARTICLE 15 - JOB DESCRIPTIONS

Job descriptions shall be developed and available for each position. Administrative Assistants and their respective building Principal shall conduct an annual review of job descriptions by April 30. A Principal may make modifications to a job description. Any member may appeal modifications of his/her job description to the Superintendent with a member of the LSDAAA present. When an agreement between the Principal and the administrative assistant can't be reached, the decision of the Superintendent will be

final. Duties of LSDAAA members shall not include any professional duties of teachers.

ARTICLE 16 - EVALUATION

Administrative Assistants will have a written evaluation each year, to be completed by April 30th. The Evaluation will be conducted by the Principal/immediate supervisor according to a format agreed to by the Association and the Superintendent.

ARTICLE 17 - ADVERTISING TO FILL VACANT POSITIONS

Five working days prior to publicly soliciting applicants for a vacant position a notice of vacancy will be posted in each of the schools.

ARTICLE 18 - INSURANCE BENEFITS

The Board shall make payments of insurance premiums to assure insurance coverage for a twelve (12) month period commencing for each individual member of the bargaining unit the first day of work in the school year following July 1, provided the member of the bargaining unit completes his/her contractual obligations in the District. Benefits of the members of the bargaining unit shall expire thirty (30) days from the date of termination if said termination occurs before the end of the contract period.

- 1. The Lebanon School District will provide the following benefits:
 - A. <u>Dental Insurance</u>: For eligible employees the District shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the total premium cost of the current Northeast Delta Dental plan or its equivalent with the following benefits and limits for a 1 person, 2 person or family plan:

Coverage A - 100% coverage Coverage B - 100% coverage Coverage C - 50% coverage

No deductible, annual plan maximum benefit is \$1,000.00 per person per year.

B. Medical Insurance: Effective July 1, 2023, for eligible employees, the District shall pay eighty-six percent (86%) of the total premium cost of the Health Trust BC2T20 plan or its equivalent (with any change in plan to be made through mutual agreement) with other Health Trust options available for 1 person, 2 person or family coverage. The employee shall pay the difference.

Deductions shall be made in accordance with Section 125 of the IRS Code.

C. Insurance Opt Out: When an employee opts out of health insurance to which he/she is entitled to, and provides the District with proof of other insurance, the employee will receive a payback from the District of \$1,000 for single, \$2,000 for 2-person, and \$4,000 for family coverage. If an employee opts out of the dental coverage, the District will pay \$250, regardless of level of coverage. In cases where both spouses are employed by the District, the District will pay 100% of the insurance premium for both health and dental insurance in lieu of this benefit.

- 2. Employees must work in a position regularly contracted for 30 hours a week or more for at least 180 days per year to be eligible for medical and/or dental coverage.
- 3. If an employee is not at work and utilizing Personal Illness Leave (up to 90 days) or Extended Illness Leave granted under Article 7A and B, the District will continue to pay for the employees' Group Hospital and Medical Insurance Benefits until Personal Illness Leave is used up or the end of the waiting period for the District's Long Term Disability Plan. At that time the employee may purchase the Group Hospital and Medical Insurance from the District. When eligible, the employee can apply for Social Security Disability; upon receiving, the employee will receive Medicare and can purchase Medi-Comp 3 or its equivalent from the District.
- 4. The Lebanon School District will provide long-term disability insurance protection, with a 90 day elimination period equivalent to 66.6% of average weekly wages to \$500 per week. Employees must work twenty (20) hours or more per week to be eligible.
- 5. The Lebanon School District will provide life insurance, A.D. and Disability benefits to provide coverage equal to one time the individual's salary.

ARTICLE 19 - SICK BANK

A sick bank exists for use during absences for medical reasons when a member has utilized all of his/her sick leave benefits and benefits from Long-Term Disability coverage are unavailable. The sick bank will be capped at a maximum of 120 days. Each newly hired member will contribute two (2) sick days to the bank during their first year of employment and the District will match the contribution. If the sick bank total is less than 90 days as of June 15 of a contract year, then 10 days will be taken from the annual entitlement of members whose sick day totals already exceed the maximum of 90 days, and the District will match that contribution. Any additional days needed to reach a minimum of 90 will be contributed by newly hired members in reverse order of their date of hire; each member will contribute (1) of his or her sick days until the minimum total is accumulated and that total contribution will be matched by the district.

The granting of sick bank benefits to members will be made at the discretion of the Superintendent and the President of the Lebanon Administrative Assistants Association. Any member may apply for the use of sick bank days by writing a letter of request to the Superintendent and LSDAAA President. Their decision will be based on the documentation presented as evidence of an illness of short-term disability. No member who receives disability payments from the disability insurance policy may receive sick bank benefits for personal illness for which disability payments were received.

ARTICLE 20 - VACATION POLICY

Employees must work in a position regularly contracted for 30 hours a week or more to be eligible for vacation.

Members of the bargaining unit whose contracts are for a minimum of 200 days including paid holidays, but who do not work year round, will be eligible for:

After 5 years of service - one (1) week of vacation After 10 years of service - two (2) weeks of vacation LSDAAA Agreement 2023-2027 Members of the bargaining unit whose contracts are year-round will be eligible for the following vacations:

- A. After (1) year of service one (1) week
- B. After (2) years of service two (2) weeks
- C. After (3) years of service three (3) weeks.

ARTICLE 21 - WAGE SCALE

- Year 1 of the contract: \$1.00 per hour increase for all members
- Year 2 of the contract: \$1.00 per hour increase of year one for all members
- Year 3 of the contract: \$1.00 per hour increase of year two for all members
- Year 4 of the contract: \$1.00 per hour increase of year three for all members

The starting hourly rate for new hires will not be more than \$0.25/hour less than the lowest paid administrative assistant already employed by the District.

ARTICLE 22 - LONGEVITY

All full-time school-year employees will be eligible for annual longevity payments as follows:

- After the completion of 5 years of service = \$ 300.00
- After the completion of 10 years of service = \$ 600.00
- After the completion of 15 years of service = \$800.00
- After the completion of 20 years of service = \$1,000.00

Payment will be prorated for part-time employees scheduled less than 30 hours per week.

ARTICLE 23 - RETIREMENT BONUS

The District will participate in the New Hampshire Retirement System for eligible employees.

Members of the bargaining unit may, by November 1 of the school year in which the member intends to retire, submit a written notice of intent to retire at the end of that school year. The employee may rescind his/her proposed retirement by notifying the Superintendent, in writing, no later than March 1, provided the employee has not in any previous year rescinded a notice of retirement.

Eligible retirees who have provided notice shall receive a lump sum check equal to 25% of the retiree's final year salary (including co-curricular and other stipends) within sixty (60) days of the end of the school year in which the member retires. A member is eligible to receive the retirement bonus only if at the date of retirement, the member is (1) age 55 or older, (2) is eligible for service retirement from the New Hampshire Retirement System, and (3) has provided at least fifteen years of service to the Lebanon School District.

In the event that more than 3 members are eligible to receive the retirement bonus in any year, the bonus shall be paid to those three members with the most years of service to the Lebanon School District and ties in years of service shall be broken by awarding the retirement bonus to the member with the earliest date of hire.

If a member does not qualify for the retirement bonus and is eligible for sick leave buyout, he/she would receive the sick leave buyout (see parameters in article 12).

ARTICLE 24 - TAX SHELTERED ANNUITY

The District will allow employees to participate, at their own expense, in a payroll deduction tax sheltered annuity.

ARTICLE 25 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- 1. Grievance: An alleged violation of this agreement.
- 2. *Grievant:* The person submitting a grievance; or The Association when a grievance is submitted on behalf of more than one Grievant; or The Association when a grievance decided by management is submitted to Arbitration.
- 3. Days: Calendar Days
- 4. Rights to Representation: The aggrieved party may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by him/her or, at the grievant's option, by the Association or by a representative selected or approved by the Association. When a member is not represented by the Association in the process of a grievance, the Association shall, at the time the grievance is submitted to the Superintendent, be notified by the Superintendent that the grievance is in process. The Association shall have the right to be present and present its position in writing at all hearing sessions held concerning such grievance and shall receive a copy of all decisions rendered.
- 5. Submission Deadline: A grievance must be submitted at Step 2 within 15 days of the date the grievant knew or should have known of the incident which gave rise to the allegation. At Step 2, the grievance must be submitted in writing. It must state the act of the District giving rise to the complaint and the specific provisions of this contract alleged to have been violated. The grievance is considered unconditionally and permanently withdrawn in favor of the district if not submitted in a timely manner.

6. Procedure:

- **Step 1 Principal**: Informal attempt to resolve the grievance, the grievance must be presented to the Principal within 5 days of the date the grievant knew of its existence. The Principal will respond, in writing, within 5 days of receipt. Following the Principal's response, the grievant may submit the grievance to Step 2 within 15 days of the date the grievant knew of the incident which gave rise to the allegations.
- **Step 2 Superintendent**: Formal consideration of the grievance by management. Superintendent will respond to the grievant within 20 days of receipt of the formal grievance.
- **Step 3 Arbitration**: Association may move the grievance to arbitration by informing the Superintendent of its intent to do so within 5 days of the date of the Superintendent's response was received or was due. The Association must initiate a request to have an Arbitrator appointed by the American Arbitration Association (AAA) within 3 days of its

notice to the Superintendent unless the Superintendent agrees to other arrangements. The request to the AAA will be in writing and a copy given to the Superintendent at the time of mailing. The Arbitrator shall be limited to the issues at hand and shall have no power to expand upon the terms of the Agreement between the parties. The Arbitrator may establish a "make whole" award but may not impose any additional penalties. The Arbitrator shall have no power to make any award involving "cost items" beyond those appropriated by the School District. The normal costs of the Arbitrator shall be borne equally by the parties. Any other costs shall be paid by the party incurring them.

7. Records: Documents, communications and records of grievances may be placed in personnel files but will not be forwarded to prospective employers.

ARTICLE 26 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement is held to be contrary to law by any court of Board of competent jurisdiction or if compliance with or enforcement of any provision should be restrained by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby and the parties shall enter into immediate negotiations to bring such part(s) of the Agreement, held to be invalid, into compliance with the edicts set down by the court.

ARTICLE 27 - ZIPPER CLAUSE

It is understood that both parties have had an opportunity to make proposals on all negotiable issues during negotiations and that this written agreement reached as a result represents the total of all understandings between the parties for the contract term.

This Agreement may not be altered, changed, or added to, deleted from or modified except through voluntary, mutual consent of the parties in written and signed amendment to this Agreement.

ARTICLE 28 - DURATION

The provisions of the Agreement will become effective as of July 1, 2023, and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2027. If this Agreement expires before a successor agreement becomes effective, the District shall comply with any and all legal obligations to maintain status quo until a successor agreement becomes effective.

LEBANON ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANTS ASSOCIATION LEBANON SCHOOL BOARD

By:Pamela Spaulding	By:Stepheu Kautor
Chairperson Negotiations Committee	Chairperson Negotiations Committee
Date: 6/10/2022	Date:06 / 15 / 2022
By:Pamela Spaulding	By:Richard Milius
President of Association	Chairperson of School Board
Superintendent of Schools	
06 / 13 / 2022 Date:	

Signature Certificate

Reference number: SFV5F-IEQJK-K2RDX-EFLPX

Signer Timestamp Signature

Richard Milius

Email: rmilius@sau88.net

 Sent:
 13 Jun 2022 19:16:33 UTC

 Viewed:
 13 Jun 2022 19:36:13 UTC

 Signed:
 13 Jun 2022 19:36:54 UTC

Recipient Verification:

✓ Email verified 13 Jun 2022 19:36:13 UTC

Richard Milius

IP address: 73.69.248.206 Location: Lebanon, United States

Stephen Kantor

Email: skantor@sau88.net

 Sent:
 13 Jun 2022 19:16:33 UTC

 Viewed:
 15 Jun 2022 16:47:23 UTC

 Signed:
 15 Jun 2022 16:49:52 UTC

Recipient Verification:

✓ Email verified 15 Jun 2022 16:47:23 UTC

Stephen Kautor

IP address: 76.24.228.163

Location: West Lebanon, United States

Document completed by all parties on:

15 Jun 2022 16:49:52 UTC

Page 1 of 1



Signed with PandaDoc

PandaDoc is a document workflow and certified eSignature solution trusted by 30,000+ companies worldwide.

